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- THE LEADERS SENTENCED .

_ E give below the report of the Court proceed-
W ans in connection with the conviction. of
: Messrs, Gandhi, Kallenbach and Polak :—
Reuter's report ol the case before the Volksrust
Court on the 14th instant states that Mr. Gandhi ap-
" peared in Court before Mr. Jooste, Assistant Magis-
trate, charged under Section 20 of the Immigration
Regulation Act. He pleaded guilty, but the formal
evidence of a resister named Poldat was cailed.-
/ Witness stated he belonged to Ballengeich Mine,
\‘nnd remembered during the current_month proceediog
with » number of Indians into the Transvaal. Poldat
suid Mr, Gandhi was leading them from Charlestown
to Johannesburg. Poldat recognised Mr. Gandhi as
the leader, Poldat knew he had no right in. this
Province, because he was & prohibited immigrant. -
Mr. Gandhi said he would like to ask witness two
questions, Why did Poldat eoter the Transvaal? -
Poldat said he entered the Transvaal as a protest
against the £3 tax .
Would Poldat have gone back to the mines il that .
&3 tox had been repealed ? ' ‘

Poldat said yes ; if the Government had agreed to |

repeal the [£3 tax, he'would have gone buck. -

Mr. Gandhi was asked if he wished to make a state- -
ment, Lo : : .
Mr. Gandbi then addressed the Court. He said he
advised not only the Iast witness, but hundreds. of
other Indians whom he koew to be prohibited immi-
grants, to cross the border into the Transvaal, Of his
intention to do so he gave the Minister of the Yaterior
due notice, and he apecially interviewed the 'immigra-
tioo officer al Volksrust, and intormed him even of the
date on which he proposed to cross the border. He
told both the Goveroment and the immhigration officer
that ia doing so his only ocbject was to make a demons-
tration against the L3 tax, which was weighing heavily
on those who were affected by it, and to court for him-
self and the party which crossed with him imprisonment,
He nssured them that nothing ¢ould be further from
his wish than to desire that a single one of those men
who crossed the border should remain in the Transvaal
and settle there. He might say also that with such 2
large number crossing with him, be might be totally
unable to prevent them for ali time from roaming about -
the country, and that therefore, he hoped the Govern-
ment would take charge of the men, Throughout the
march into the Transvaal he endeavoured to keep the
men under control, and to prevent them from dis.
persing, and he claimed that not a single Indian- left |

lb:: tollowing, if it could be so called. L
ontinuing his statement, Mr. Gandbi said he b
something at Heidelberg about the meeting of vigil::l:,
whose aim, he understood, was to mgke the .Govern-
ment enforce the Immigration Act. There was, there-

}

fore, common cause between the Vigilants’ Committee | he beligved Mr. Kai

-+ Mr. Kallenbach remarked

and himself and his co-woikers, To. the Court he *
begged to give the assurance that the present move-
ment had aothing whatsoever to do with the unlawful
eotry for purposes of residence in the Transvaal of &
single Indian. He thought that he might fairly claim
that his whole career in the Transvaal had been
actuated by the motive of assisting the Government in-
preventing surreptitious entry and unlawful settlement.
But be had pleaded guilty, as he knew he had com- -
witted an offence on a vast scale against the section_ -
under which be was charged. He was aware, too, that
the steps he had taten were franght with the greatest
risks and intense persopal suffering by those who had -
accepted his advice, but after very mature cansideration,” :
based on twenty years’ experience of -South Africa, he ~."
had come to the conclusion that nothing short of such . -
suffering would - move .the 'couscience of the Govern--
nent, as also of the inhabitants of the Union, of which,
in spite of the so-called breach ofthe statutory laws of
the Union, he claimed ta be a sane and law-abiding
citizen, - - . . D
The Court then adjourned for a quarter of am hour
for the Magistrate to coosider his decisio~.. -~ -~ °= .
On resuming, Mr. Jooste passed sentence of three
n.onths’ imprisonment. <N e

"Mr.. Kallenbach’s “‘E:';;sé'-'f -

-i

.

-, Mr. Kallenbach’s case was in the Puslic Prosecutor’s. o

hands earlier than was expected, and when he was
informed to this effect he, at his own request, appeared
acthe Court on the 15th instant instead of on the xy1h,
to which date his case had been: remanded. . He was .
charged under Section 20 of Act 22 of the Immigration
Restriction Law, and pleaded guilty. Mr. 5. A, Poole
prosecuted for the Crown, - _Mr. Kallenbach conducted
his own detence. Three witnesses were called, Rifleman
B. ]. Meyer, a Newcastle Indian, and Mr. H.. Treble,
the Immigration Officer at Volksrust. . , =~ .- .
They all identified Mr: Kallenbach as having taken -
&n active part in the proceedings- on November 6th, .-
when nearly 3,600 passive resisters crossed the border, =
Mr. Kallenbachr did not wish to put any questions to-.’
any of the witnesses, and stated that he assisted Mr. -
Gandhi in conducting the resisters through the town.
The Public Prosecutor drew attention to the section '
which bad been contravened, and said that the acensed
bad broken this section deliberately and knowiogly.
He asked the Court to impose the highest penalty, -
, that he snpported what "
the Prosecutor had =iid, namely, that the “highest
pe:h:;ltj}shouldbegiven; T
r. Jooste, the Assistant Magistrate, in sentencing -
the accused to three monthy’ impris:'nment witho?.tf o
hard labour, said that it was regrettable that the law »
coutd not deal with political offenders, one-of which
lenbach to be. - He also said that © -

;e - —
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be believed the accused acted according to the dictates
ol his conscience. . ’

Mr. Kall:nbach, at a previous stage, read the follow-
ing statement to the Court : *I am, and have been, an
intimate friend of Mr Gandhi for many years, and so
have had the opportunity of studying the Indian gques-
tion in all ity aspects. I conscientiously believe that

- the South African Indiaos are suffering vader a number
of real grievances which the Govermnivnt have rot
remedied.. Twice the Government have given pledy: s
to,do so. I know all the circumstances which sur-
roundet-these prumises at the time of their happening,
and believe that scrious breache- «f faith have ocourr

" on the part of the authorities which must hum a.y
Government, and bower the prostige <f thr white oo

“in a courty atgsach a mixed p‘r.‘u‘:u?un as thar g
Sinnh _‘_\!rica.ﬂh'.—‘ Todian !

ey apnd v teloss, has fried by vumerous depaiat o
p;‘,.'-.ﬁcm?.,_and aibier peprosenl Hons, to obtain i dres

~oob je grievaneos. Mro Ganchiy ihelr leader, ader

Y oaahewsting eil o her mecns, then intraduced wion 1

Cbonsider the anly « Toerive means of scowring redres,

Vi passive fesistanes, 2 weaps in wheeh I, for wany

Tiykers & discple of Tulstoy, theroughly believe, Passive

. treisinnce, in my opinion., is a weapon which can

" pever be adopted successiully by a party that is in the

U weangh < It s a wetpon which means selt suffaring,

#r.ich dows not inflict_suffering upon others—a weapoo
.+ whivh fges not imply the use of physicil foree agaicst
ar riking or auybodyfil whole heartedly agree with this
U misde olimoral fighfing, and dt this, the third stage of
¢ the. movement, after having assisted to a lesser degree
- .-in the first two struggles, I decided to’ throw mysell
‘heart and soul into this third passive resistance
CAMpRIgn, s & - T :
&+ Notwithstanding any judgment against me, 1 wish
_-to declarp—and I ask your Worship not to take this
- & o discourtesy to the Court—that I shall coatinue
10 employ the means of passive resistance against the
‘ Government,ﬂ.nd« I conscientiously” belicve that not
only am I not opposiog the Government by assisting
any persop or party to enter into this moral and ethical
#arfare, but that in so doing I am aiding the Govern-
. ment and my fellow-colonists in the solution of a most

L nunu iy, deing voire-

‘/Mr. Gandhi gave evidence that the march to the
Transvaal was fixed "without consultation with Mr
Polak, who intended leaving fur India cu November
14th, and he knew all arrangrments had been made for
Mr. Polak’s departure from Durban,  Had it not bLeea
for wittess's arrest before reaching Greylingstad, Mr,
Polek would certainly have leit at that station.  Under
the circumstances, Mr. Gandhi thought Mr Puik
<hnuld lead the column to its destination, so that the
mei wedld mot disperse. In M Guodlu's opinion, if
Mr. Polak was guilty of aiding and abetting, so Jlso
were "Lhe troopers whie guided the o lamn T ¥,
He ennsider dshas Me Pk bad randes d s rve 1o
the Suat = and to his reee, by actag as he had,
mon Fad beca handed over o Mo
M Cak-lah ool e el ] on

I"he
Poak boeuse

1 .
[ TAE S LI

The Tenee Procauorn, alae o om kg o e
P TP TY S PAURE VAR I £ PR Fol senn d
Swnlre and e By e sent e

T AMoasitmie wowd the o used 2oy, ol
seatared gt e l.'t‘lh:]:',‘l.i"'!‘f'\ Lo, \'\'!ln ut

haid labour,

The Coarl was crowdod 10 Hs wmest e paciy dueing
the pru-c(-_.!iu;s.'rl ’

Mr. Poluk bhofi provicusly drossod the Cow as
folluws :—

As an officer .1 this Courr, the Court s entitlid Lo
know {rom me the extent of my association with the
Passive Resistapce movement and my roasons thea bor,

1 have, for many years, made a most utimate s ly
of the [ndian question in South Alrica, both ag a private
citizen and a3 the Editor of Ixpian OnmiNion, aud 1
claima to be as closely arquainted with the Indian pro-
blem in this country as any European here, From this
study I have convinced mysell that the Indian comumu-

. nity is labouring under a number ul most serivus
grievances which, unless they are speedily removed, will
result in its material ruin and its moral degradation.

~ As an Englishman, a Jew, and a member of the legal
prolession, I have felt impelied to do my utmost to
prevent such a calamity both to the Indian aod the
European population. As an Englishman, it is im-
possible for me to sit silent whilst the Government of
the Union, claiming to speak in my name, repudiate,

as they have twice done this year, their sglemn pledges
towards my fellow-British subject ot Indian nationality,
in defiance of what is best in British public opinioo and,
regardless of Imperial obligations and responsibilitica
towards the people of India. Moreover, as 4 Europysn
1 canoot contemplate, without serious alarm, the effect
upon the coloured population of this country as it
becomes known that pledges wade to a section of the
coloured community by the Government of the Union
are not ooly not redecmed but are even positively
denied.

As a Jew, it is impossible for me to associate myself,

‘- difficult problem. : - .
% Asa European I consider it a privilege to have
! been associated with this movement, and thus to have
< “byeroable in a tangible manner to share to a certain
:+.degree: the -sufferings of the Indiam passive resisters,
. and-] bave no hesitation in inviting my tellow-Euro-
peans to study the question, when I have no doubt that
¥, they will feel as I do, and assist the Indian inhabitants
% of South Africa in their righteous struggle for liberty
- " and self-respect. ' :
.| 0 Even at this eleventh hour the Government will
. be putting themselves and my fellow-Colonists in South

~Africa in-the right by making a statement to repeal the
47 tax, which alove "has caused these helpless men

and wonlen to abandon their all and suffer to the utter-

" most” .

-. / Mr. Polak Sentenced
.+ ;Mr. Polak appeared beforé Mr.. Jooste, assistant
. magistrate, on the 17th instant, charged vnder Section
a0 of Act 2z of 1913 {the Immigration Act). Mr
Polak declined to plead to the charge. -
" The evidence of five witnesses was called, including
Messrs. Gandhi and Kallenbach.
.+ Rifleman Joubert stated that he had seen Mr. Polak
_ask Mr. Gandhi forinstructions at Balfour,and he thought
MTr. Polak was one of the leaders of the movement.
“Constable Kneen stated that Mr. Polak had ad-
dressed the Indians, and advised them to return to
-Charlestown. LA

Mr. Halienbach said that Mr. Polak's intention had |

been to return the same night to Durban. His purpose

_ was to discuss certain matters with Mr. Gand, which
bad reference to Mr. Polak’s impending departure lor
India. . )

even passively, with th¢ persecution of any race or
pationality. My co-religionists to-day, in certain parts.
ot Europe, are undergoing suflering and persucutiun on
racial grounds, and, finding the same spirit of persecu-
tion in this country, directed agairst the Indian people,
I have felt impelled to protest against it with every
fibre of my being.

As & member of the legal profession, I have made a
declaration of Joyalty to the Crown and to do my duty
as an Attorney of this honourable court. In takiog the
part of the Indian passive resisters, loyal subjects of the
Crown, in their demand for justice, I cluim to have
proved my loyalty io the most practical possible manner,
and, as an Attorney, I claim to have given the only
advice to them possible to me as an honourable man
who places justice before loyalty and moral law betore
human law. ‘

Lastly, I bave the privilege of the intimate riendship of
the Honourable Mr. Gokhale, who has publicly declared
that a promise of repeal of the £ 3 Tax was deliberately
made to him by the Ministers whom he met at Pretoria
a year ago. In spite ol the official denial of -that

promise, [ am bound to believe in the truth of my
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friend’s statement. I know that his mere word is accept-
¢d not only by mitlions of the people of India, but also
by the Indian and Imperial Governments, and I should
have failed in my friendship bad 1 not used my most
strenuous efforts to cusure that effect should be given
to this promise. . ,

1 regard the £ 3 Tax upon those Indians liable to it
as a blot upon the good name of the -British Empire.
1t is, in my humble opinion, & relic of barbarism. Its
direct effect is to drive the tax-payers back to conditions
of “servitude, dishonourable to British traditions of
freedom, or to expel them irom this country, which has
reaped the fruits of their labour for a period of years,
From my own personal investigations both in India and
in South Alrica, I positively deny that the vast majority
of the tax-payers, in entering upon their cootracts, had
aoy koowledge of the true nature of those contracts,
- which have been made betwees unequal contractiog
parties, one of whom was wholly ignorant of eonditions
al life in South Africa. In repudiating their liability
to the tax, and in demanding its repeal, my entire
" sympathies have been with these fellow-subjects. Know-
ing as I do that all other constitutional means of secur--
. ing redress of this most bitter grievance bave failed,
I felt it my duty, as a convinced passive resister myself,
who have taken a prominent part in the Indian. move-
inent for many years, to counsel those liable to this
iniquitous tax to adopt passive resigtance to that end
and I claim to have the authority of General Smuts
himself in describing passive resistance as a2 perfectly
legitimate and constitutional method of peaceful pro-
test, especially when adopted by a voiceless and vote-
less community such as these unhappy people. I
admit that I have advised and counselied passive |
resistance whenever, in my opinion, it has been neces-
sary, 1 admit myself having acled as a passive resister
on many occasions. _ o

With reference to the present charge, the tacts are |
as follows :=—Being about to procecd to India on the
14th instant, st the vabled request of the Honourable
* Mr. Gokhale, in order to co-operate with him in
rlncing the facts of the present situation before the

ndian and Imperial Governments, I desired to confer
with my friend, Mr. Gandhi, on certain poiots relating
.thereto, and, on the 7th instant, I telegraphed from’
Darban to him, informiog him of my wish, | received
- m reply stating that I might meet him at Greylingstad,

but that I might be arrested also. Though I entirely
approvei of the movement, I then had no connection
with the march of the passive resisters into the Trans-
vaal, beyond haviog been instrumental in forwarding
food supplies to Charlestown, where the people had
been concentrated, my work, anticipating my visit to
India, lying in Durban, 1 decided, however, to pro-
ceed to the Transvaal, and, if the Government desired
my arrest, to afford them the earliest opportunity ol
securing it. I reached Volksrust on Sunday morning,
" the oth instant, and learnt that 1 should, probably be
able to meet Mr. Gandhi near Teakworth Halt, I
accordingly descended from the traio at this place, and
sent on my effects to Greylingstad station, intending
to return (rom there to Durban by the corridor trzin
the game night, I met the column on the road bear
Teakworth Halt, and waiked in Mr. Gandhi's company,
dizcussing & number ol matters with- him, tor about.
balf an hour, when we wers met by two policemen, -

accompanied by Mr. M. Chamney, the Chief Immi-

gration Officer; and Sub-lnspector Fall, who arrested

Mr. Gandbi and removed him at once by cart to Grey-

“lingstad Station, and thence, via Baliour, to Heidelberg,
The police did not in any way sarrest, control, or
assume responsibility for the mainknance and welfare
of the column ot pearly two thousand Indians, whom

1 adamit I knew to be probibited immigrants in the
. Transvaal Province, I think it was Sub-Inspector Fail

who asked me what I proposed to do. I replied that"

I understood that it-had been Mr. Gandhi's intention -

to lead the men to Gueylingstad to camp there for the .

‘make them realise what was their duty

good watersupply for so wany people, and t) take
them the pext morning to Balfour, where a food-depot-
had been established. As the men were free t» mam
about the country, I determined with & view to prevent
this to become responsible for the discipline of the
column, and, as a humane measure, to tike thcm to
the places where they would obtain water and food.
I accordingly informed Sub-Inspector Fall that it was
my intention to take the men as far as Balfour, and
I explained my reasons. He replied advising me nut
to take them further than that place. I told him that
I could give him pno assurance to that eflect, as their
further movements would depend upon circumstances, -
but that I wag entirely at his disposal, and would be
glad to discuss matters at Balfour with him and Mr.
Chamney. R
Next day, Monday, at Baliour, both of these gentle-
men invited me to a consultation, and informed ine
that they had received instructions to examine the mea .
as to their qualifications to eucter the Traosvaal, and,
if fouad to be withont these, to deport them by train .
at once to Charlestown. They asked for my co-onera-
tion to eatrain the people peacefully, and so avoid the
intervention of the police force that had arrived Lom
Heidelberg. 1 asked what would happen at Charlestown
to the poeple., Mr. Chamney replied that he undesr-
stood- that the Natal authorities would there arrest
them and assume charge of them.¥ I then said that,
in that event,. my responsibility towards the men cease.d,

" otherwise I should have felt it my duty to continue the

march with them towards. Lawley, until either | was -
arrested or they were, In the circumstances, I said
that I would cordially co-operate with Messrs. Chamney
and Fall to secure the peaceful entraining of the men; -
and that F would use my best efforts to that end, at the
same time placing niyself at the Government’s dispos:l,
it it were their desire that I shouid be arrested. .. Both

gentlemen assured me that my arrest was pot desired.’

I then said that, though it was quite likely that the peo-

ple would want to receive the instruction 'to entrain - -

from Mr. Gandhi personally, 1 woﬁld-z endeavour 10~
in the matter,

After rations bad beenr distributed, at Mr. Chamney's

‘request I called the people together in‘groups, and he

then investigated their”.claims, declared them to. be ' '

.prohibited immigrants in the Transvaal, and ordered . .

them to be arrested and entrained for Natal. " As they
were not quite clear s to the situation, at Mr. Chauineys " -
further request I explained the matter to the people, -
and urged them, as passive resisters, to co-operate with. -
me in entrainiog, reminding them that the Governpient
had now done what all- along the Indians bad asked -
them to do, namely, arrested and assumed responsibility -
for the column. - Several of .the more ardent spints-
amongst the men commenced to resume the march.
towards Lawley, and seeing that the others were likely,
in the excitement of the -moment, to follow .their
example, I ran at once to the head of the column and -

Sub-Inspector Fall advised me to-walk through the . -
middle of the crowd towards the Station..  This I did,
calliog upon those who knew me to follow me. 7The

' move was successful, and gradually the remainder

changed their minds and proceeded to the Station, . In
-order to avoid deilny, I went back repeatedly ang brought
batch after batch to the station till all were entrained. .
It bad been my intention to proceed from Balfour to

Durban by the night corridor train in order to catchmy
steamer on the 14th, but, not -knowing exactly what

necessary, to co-operate there with the authorilies,
Before 1 left, Sub-Inspector Fall thanked me for my

.co-operation in securing ‘the ‘entraining of the 2,000’

Indians almost without police intervention. Whilst!
: waiting at Charlestown Station for the other two trains,!

night, as it was the only convenient. place to obtain & °

{10 Volksrust.  On Tuesday, I telegraphed to the Minis-:

urged the men not to do this, but to accapt my advice;, - -
A lew moments of confusion followed, and at length, .

might happen at Charlestown, I decided to accotupany . -
~ the first of the three trains as far as there, so as, it

i1.was arrested. on the present charge and removed' "



.2w

INDIAN OPINION

Novelser 26TH, 1913

ter of the Interior, stating the abové facts and those of
my intended visit to India, informing him that, if it were
the intention. of the Government to proceed with the
case, I would gladly stand my trial aod take the conse-
quences, in which event I should have to inform Mr.

Gokhale ot my change of plans, The Minister’s replp,

was that, in his cpinion, the case should proceed.
These gre, sa far as my recollection carries, all the
facts relating to my association with the Indian marchers.
_If, upon them, the coart is satisfied that I have com-
mitted the offence with which I am charged to-day, 1
am fully prepared to submit myseli to whatever penaity
" the court may impose. I plead nothingfin mitigation or
extenuation of what 1 have done. I feel that I have
performed a humane duty that I was compelled to
perform, I do not regret one single thing that I have
done in ¢connection with this movement. 1am absolutely
unrepentent. Did the circumstances arise again, I
would repeat my actions. If I am now convicted as one
who has counselled and advised to passive resistance,
.it is but jast that [ shonld receive ag severe a penalty

as any person who has been sentenced as the result of

this movement, which J feel I may be able to serve even
¥ better in gaol than by going t¢ India. - I shall, so soon
‘as my period of imprisonment, il any, expires, proceed
* exactly as I baye done in the past. IfI am to-day
released, my conduct will not alter one fota from.what
it was prior to my arrest. So long as I am in this
” country, and;, in my humble opinion, the. necessity
. exists tor passive resistance against intolerable laws
_. against my Indian fellow-sabjects, with whom it is my
. greatest privilege to serve and upon occasion to suffer,
-y shall be a passive resister, I shall advise passive re-
. systance, and I shall be prepafed,by way of protest ag-
- pingt laws that injure me as they injure them, to accept
- all the consequences of breach of thioge laws,

. The Editor of the Preforia News (Mr, Vere Stent)
" writes as follows in the Editorial columns of his paper:
. - My dear General, ' .- h

o Itis sometime since I have distingnished you by

adding an open letter to your voluminous correspond-

. ence, but I feel I must send you a fow words of warning

- patticularly with regard to the Indian trouble which is

. rapidly developing. - : " : :

.-+ Don’t beat about the bush. Don't quibble. You
know that you gave Mr. Gokhale to understand that

' the £ 3 tax would be remitted and that the consulting
yof the Natal members was merely a formality. You

. koow another thing. You koow that the Natal mem-

bers were not unanimous. Some of them were not pre-

sent at the meeting which you called to consider the

. tax and even at that- meeting the majority against

remission was only one. i St

. There is something else you know and that is the

real reason why some of the Natal members do not

wish the tax taken off, It is this, Thay want to force
the Indians to re-indenture. ‘They daren't say this in
public because they know it to be a disgraceiul motive
but they say it in private and they think it and they
mean to keep the tax in existence so long as they can

for this purpose and for nguoe other, ,

_ You have told us there is nothing in the tax from a
revenué point of view., You admit that no serious
financial sacrifice would be involved if it were given up
but yet you shelter yourself first of all behind those
Natal arembers whose motives are base and sordid and

~ secondly, behind the plea of a weak man that to remit
the tax now in the face of the sttike would be construed
is weakhess and would be highly impolitic,

Now, #ir, surely aiter what happaned at the Carlton
Hotel,upon the gth of July last when you made terms

“with the minars, ot in the face of a peaceful strike or
a ‘campalgn of passive resistance, but in the face of
revolutloy, with it arsom, ts magazine pistols, ity riot
and its eontemplated murder—~—surely il you were strong

t very diffcult at the present moment.

-_,;Operi Lettes to- General Smuits

-enough then to take what was undoubtedly, at that

moment, the right course, if bloodshed was to be-pre-
vented, you are strong enough now to do a simple act
of justice and not to be afraid that it will be miseon-
streed into ao act of weakoess.

You were upon dangerous ground, The Indian will
argue this way, He will say, we have struck peacefully,
contemplating no injury to property or to humau
beiogs, we are well within the law, we do not create a
not, nor do we interlere with any who wish to work.
We do not *strike march,” we do not “ pull” people
out. e are quiet and law-abiding and the result is
our demands are ignored. Then will come to him the
thought that after all an appeal to physical lorce pays.
The revolutionists woo. That is a dangerous thought,
as I have said before, because you are dealing with
fanatics, religious fanatics, and one might even say
political fanatics. If they do make up their minds to
appeal to lorce, of course, it will be quite easy to reply
wilh force ~ But we don’t want any more shoot ng in
South Alrica for a bit, do we ? and I imagine fear ol
death would pot stop them. ,

Then, again, remember your friends ; the Liberal
Government. ‘They've been vary good to you. They
jerrymandered the Transvaal constituencies in the first
instance and handed South Africa back to you to
govern. You owe them something. Their position is
he Ulster
trouble is looking very ugly, they don’t want trouble
with India as well, and you are going to make trouble
with India if you get to shooting British Indians in
this country. I am no believer in encouraging violence.
I realise that if the Indians are foolish enough to take
the sword they must perish by the sword. Rut the
responsibility of the trouble will be upon yor head,
As a matter of fact your sympathies are with the
Indians but you have yielded to the sordid desire of
Natal to get more indentured labour,

You are the slave ol circumstance. The exigencies
of the political sitzation are too much for you, The
1ndians have no vote angd so they don't counl upon
your chess board. They are not even pawns, VYou
have yielded to the Free State and its disgraceful colour
prejudice.  You have pandered to the intolerance of
Transvaal, That may be politics, General ; it may be
very sim, but it's not Statesmanship. It is not the
sott of action that sends a man’s name down to pasterity
enshrined in honour. It brings a success for the
moment, but that is all. I make one- final appeal to
you. Show yoursell strong enough and big enough
and sufficiently self-confident to do what you know to
be right, to release these Indians from an extortion
and to meet Mr. Gandhi upon the other points in dis-
pute. Don't forget it is better to do justice now grace-
fully than to have it wrung from you as it was helore,
You have pitted yourselt against the philosophic cle-
ment of the Orient. You were beaten to a fraazle last
time. You cannot afford to be beaten this time, U
you do what is right : ow there will be no question of
being beaten, but if the struggle is prolonged and bitter
no one knows what may happen. Dov’t be obstinate ;
obstinacy is the last refuge ol a fvol and the Lord
knows you are not a fool,

Believe that I address you with affectionate regard,
speaking not threats, but words of warning, and permit
me to inscribe mysell a yery sincere admirer of your
brain who only regrets that it 13 not tempered by a
little intrusion of the heart, a little emolion even |l
there were less reason and logic.

The * Mercury’s ” Suggestion

The policy of maintaining the tax is a question od
which the Government have no settled convictiony
{says the Vatal Merewry fo an cditorial on the 14th
instant,) They were willing to leave the Natal members
of Parliament to decide whether {t ghould be repealed
or not, It ls pot publicly knawn whether an sctual
majority of these members of Parliament were In fayour
of retaining the tax—soms of their sumber say they
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were not consulted on the point. We know for a fact
that at least eight Natal members of the House of
Assembly are definitely in favour of repeal, while the
attitude of others is doubtful, At the utmest there can.
only be a majority of one amongst thé Natal members
of the Assembly in favour of the continuance of the
tax. While we are firm io holding that the first duty
of the Government is to maintain order, and that the
strike is & mistake, from the Indian point of view,
would it not be a wise thing for the Government. to
institute a dapartmental inguiry into the whole matter
in relation Lo the tax ? As lar as we know, the Gov-
- ernment are simply maintaining a4 Jassses Jarre attitude
although varicus suggestions have been made by corres-
ondents in our columns for some move that would
ead to an amelioration of the difficalty which the-tax
law in its present form has helped to create. :
[NoTE: .One ot these suggestions was that those
who had been ffteen years in the country should be
exempt ; another suggestion has since been made by an
Indian correspondent that the tax should be suspend-
ed :—Ed, 1.0.] oo - -

. From the Editor’s.Chair_'

OO,
WHAT 1S REQUIRED

As there are indications of a desire on the part of
Natal members of the Legislative Assembly and others
to bring about a settlement of the strike, it is necessary
to make the position quite clear. . The term “ £3tax”
is misleading if it gives people to understand that the
price of the tax is the root of tha matter. The removal
of the tax without doing away with the necessity of
takiog out an aunu.l licence to remain in the country
would nul be sufficient, Ii the tax alone were repealed,
the posilion would be that the licencs would still have
ta be taken out if the people wished to remain as frez
men. Now there can be no use in asking them to do
80. Apart [rom the hardship of having to pay the £3
it is unjust that these poor people, who have enriched
the country by their lahour, should be compelled sither
to return to India, with their scanty earnings, or re.
indenture themselves continually, It is said that the
Indiung, before they leit India, perfectly uuderstand
the position and agreed to the conditions, We strongly
deny that these people were ahle to realise what they
were agrecing to, - Glowing accounts of a land flowing
with milk aud boney were given by the recruiters who
were paid according to the number of recruits secured; -

We have personally investigated cases where the peopla |

have stated that they were deceived, and instances of
kidoapping are not unknown, A contract of this nature -
18 no contract at all, the parties thereto not being .on
anythiog appronching equal terms. .The imposition,
08 we have 30 olten pointed out, iy immoral, and there
i’ not a good word to be said for it;

ALLEGATIONS OF ILL.TREATMENT

Tue demand for an impartial inquiry into the allegations
ol flogging aod other forms of ili-treatment by mine
waoagers and European ethployees is imperative, It
is unfortunate that the report went forth that the In-
dian named Nagdu had died as the result of flogging.
Mr. Ritch has stated that such was nol the case. But
the matter does not end there, A large number of
sworn statements have been made regarding brutal
assaults and these are at the disposal of the Govern:.
ment. ‘The parties who made statements that serious
nasaulty have taken place are prepared to stand by what
they have dutlared. * A Maglaterial Inguiry is not suffs
ciant, and Lord Gladstone’s despatches will not con.
vince, because, as Mr, Gokhale pointed ont to Reuter's
Agency iu Indin, he in ¥ the mouthpiecs of the Unlon
Mmim'u Withaut the meant of mak og an {adeprrdent
inquiry"  The Vicaray considers the matier 0f auch

-

grave importance that he has urged _o;: Lord C;ovn -
the impostance of a thorough impartial inguiry by a

strong Committee on which Indians shouid be fuily

represented. We hope that the Union Government

will lose no time in acting on this excelient suggestion.

We are quite surs that nothing short of -this will satisty

the Indian community of South Africa, the people of-
Indis or the inhabitants of Great Britain, to say nothing

ol- a large body of Europeans in South Africa.

THE LEADERS IN P}USON .-

THe arrest and imprisonment of Messms. Gaodhi,
Kallenbach and Polak was a blow at the movement
which was, no doubt, expected to damp the ardour of
the passive resisters, To be deprived of the leadershi

of three such men at a critical moment was certainly
-enough to make the stoutest heart - quake. But
what do we find ? A$ soon ‘as the news reached the
ears of the huge mass of employed on the sugar estates,
it acted like a spark to a hay stack and the whole of
the plantations were quickly affected. At the present
moment there must be no less than 20,000 Indians on

" strike along the Coast. The Government have to thank -

the imprisoned leaders themselves for the conyictions. -
As Mr. Polak points out in & letter .to the
press, Mr, Gandhi was coavicted at Dundee on his own
evidence, after having pleaded guilty to g badly drawn -
indictment. By itsell, the Prosecution would have
failed to secur: a coaviction. Similarly at Volksrust,
Mr. Gandhi pleaded guilty to a charge which was
proved against him only by witneuetatrﬁu he had, a1

the request of the authorities, furnished them at Krom-

draai, and by his own evidence. Mr. Kallenbach was _ -

.convicted because he pleaded gullty ; he gave evidence

against himself, and evidence was provided against him
for the Crows by Mr. Gandhi. At Balfour Mr. Polak
was specially asked by the authorlties to use his influence
with the 2,000 Iidians, niost of whom-he had never
seen betore, to induce them peacéfully to submit to- -
arrest, and to entrain for Natal. It is safe to say that, '
but for the assistance he rendered to the Governmen;
on that occasion, it would have been impossible to-

prevent the spread over the Transvaal of 2,006 pro-
bibited immigrants, Finally, the Magistrate who con- . -
victed Mr. Polak at Volksrust pointed out that he had,”
whilst refusing to plead, been convicted his-own

“evidence and- that of Mr. Gandhi, rather than
by the Prosecution.

~by any of these three persons to avold conviction,

Had. any real attempt been made

there is little doubt that they would to-day be free -

- men.

Allegations  of I{lI-Treatment

We huve made caretul inquiries into the matter of
the allegations'of ill-treatient- on the mires, and we
are satisfied, in spite of the denials of officials, that -
serious assaults have taken place. It is iinfortunate -
that the rumour was spread that an Indian named:

" | Napdu bad been flogged to death. M. Ritch made

it his business to investigate this matter abd he éngaged .
Dr. Sutherland to make 4n examinatioh of the body -
with the result that it wis lound that ihe immediats
cause of death was ludg disease, . There were g marks
which would indicate that thé man had bees severgly
bE}.len- B i . . - . . ) —. :
u regard to the allegations of whipping, strikia
with sticks and the forcing of imen ﬁn%‘;rgiudd; wg
are in possession of sevéral sworn statements, gng wé
understand thit there are many others avaiiable; . in -
which detailed accounts are given'of brutaj assaults by
the mine managers and police. The European ¢m-
ployees oa the mives have besn emrolled a5 speclal -
constables and, with the exception of one or tws
warders and the native police, they are 1o charge of tha
tisoners, The mines {p which thep gre Impriagned
ave besn proclhimed a3 putatadont o the Dupdeg .
and Ehwsast!c Gaaly,  Men wora breugln back from -
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their march into the Transvaal, and .they - were quite
prepared n ! ]
men wéte brought to their own mine and saw the wire
‘lying on the ground ready for the making of the fence
which they themselves were to be compelled to erect
to form a prison, they paturally objected, and it is
stated that 200 of them commenced at once to march
away in the direction of Newcastle gaol. It was then
that the serious assaults complained of and described
by many different witnesses took place. It was ad-
mitted to Mr. Ritch by Mr, Eutt, the manager of the
Ballengeich mine, that he took part in this cruel work
of thrashing the retreating Indians. Still the Magistrate
of Newcastle denies i fofo all the allegations of ill-
treatment and states that the trouble commenced by
the Indians attacking the Europeans. The “attack”
appears to have taken the form of the waving of sticks
.and a general excitemeot. In the disturbance the
" manager received a cut across his hand which may or
may not have been caused by someone striking him.
The Protector of Indian Immigrants, whom we inter-
.wiewed in. the matter, appears to be satisfied that
. the Magistrate's view is the correct one. His jurisdiction,
. however, ceased as soon as the men were safely locked
© in these temporary gaols. In view of the gondlicting
statements regarding these sllegations it cannot be
* experted that anything short of a proper inquiry by the
- ‘Government, when all the witnesses can be called and
 at which the Indians are represented, will satisfy the
’ ,c.ommnnity.. :

-

. \ Progress of the Strike

- Yt was roughly estimated that there were ;.ooo or
8,000 Indians on strike in Durban alone on Tuesday
night, the 18th ipstant, and the strike, says our Durban

..morning contemporary, was about as complete as it
couid be, and not & single Indian hawker or farmers

. cart attended the market.. The authorities commenced

', to.take definite action and 133 strikers, chiefly railway

-~employees, were arrested, at the instance of the Chief
" Magistrate who went to the barracks accompanied by
.+ Captain King avd a body of mounted police. Eye-
itnesses state that there was brutal treatment on the

- pact of the police who dragged the people from their
- yooms.: Some of the men were so severely injured that

" they bad to be treated by a doctor. The Protector
" informs us that the men first attacked the Magistrate
" and police, whilst the chief of the police flatly denied
. - any ill-treatment of the Indians. We leave ouf readers
*. tojudge for themselves between these conflicting reports.
." <. At Ladysmith, on Tuesday, about 1,000 Indians
- ~trom the Elandslaagte mine, who with their wives and
children had marched into the town, were addressed
by the Magistrate who advised them to return, but they
refused to do so. Another body of 150 strikers came
along and joined those assembled in the Court-house
yard, when, it is stated, a general riot took place and
the police and strikers fought with sticks. A desperate
fight ensued, so the report goes. The Deputy-Mayor
published a request for volunteers with firearms to

L

agsamble in front of the Town Hall to make a demons- .

tration, and & bod¢ of Europeans gathered together,
armed with revclvers, shortguns and other weapeans.

- The strikers, however, remained .quiet and no further
trouble occurred. It is stated that the strikers agreed
to return to the mine. ,

On Wednesday, at the Durban Court, the 133 Iudian
_strikers, arrested the previous day, were brought belore
_the Court. First a batch of 120 of them were charged

with being absent without leave. They were defended
by Mr. Michel.

Evidence supportiog the charge was given by Mr.

V. Fenton, labour clerk for the Province of Natal for
.. the South African Railways,
men in the barracks, be said, and tried to persuade
them to return to work. They replied that their
“king” had told them to strike; that their “king”
- was now in prison, and that they would oot return to

to go to prison, but when the Ballengeich

He had interviewed the

work till he was relersed  They also wanted to have
the £ 3 tax repealed ) :

Mr. Michel, in speaking o behali of the accused,
re[erred to the circumstances which had led up to the
strike, and sugyested that force had been used to
compel thess men to work, Mounted police had been
brought in, and he thought that the Government had
no right to compel then to work. There had been no
riot, the accused had been merely passive, and he con-
tended that the use of {orce had done more harm than
good. Ouoe man had been injured. He said that the
men had acted in opposition to the law, but they
" betieved that.they had been doing right. They hoped
by their action to induce the Government to redress
‘their grievances. He entirely deprecated the use of
armed and mounted men to suppress the strike. .

Addressing the accused, the Magistrate said they
had refused to work, altough they bad no grievance
against their employers. They had been addressed by
the Chief Magistrate, and their employers had done
all they could to induce them to return to work, and
they still refused. The accused, being indentured
Indians, were not subject to the L3 licence. They
had come from India, and agreed to work for a certain
period, and at the end of that time they could return
to India. But they had broken their contract, and thus
rendered themselves amenable to the law, which pro-
vided a penalty of seven days' hard labour tor their
offence.

The Magistrate then sentenced the accused to seven
days’ hard labour.

The remainder of the 133—a batch of 13 [ree In.
dians—were brought into Court on a charge of neglect.
jng to perform their stipulated duties. They were also
delended by Mr. Michel. Three of them gave reason-
able excuses, and were discharged, and the remainder
« were fined £3.

" A party of 41 from South Coast Junction were then
marched into the Court, and charged with being found
without passes. These men, who were indentured In-
dians, were tound more than & mile from their quarters,
and a fine ol 108, or seven days’ imprisonment, was
inflicted on them.

-All the above prisoners were alterwards marched off
to gaol. ‘

The Transvaal Leader reporter made a journey along
the North Coast on Wednesday. His estimate of the
number of strikers on the plantations was 10,000,
Amongst other items ol intormation, he states that the
owners of the sugar plantations. seem to be keco on
sustzining the harmonious relations which have
subsisted between them and their Indian employees.
Rations are in all cases being issued to the men on
strike, the sole stipulation being that they shall not
leave their own estate without a permit.

We are not in a position to judge the extent of the
keenness to sustain harmonious relations, but we know
that the statement regardiog rations is incorrect.

The reporter observed how easy it would be to set
the cane fields ablaze, but he saw nv reason for an
alarmist view, for, il the fields are to be burned, the
business is so simple that it would have been done
before now. ’

" In regard to the collision #ith the police on Suoday,
the 16th instant, the reporter stales \—

Alarmist accounts of this affray were spread, and in
Tudian quarters in Durbaa I heard that three coolies
had been killed. Subsequently the fatality list was
reduced to one, acd it is because I have information
that news of this farality has been cabled to India
and England that I meotion it. When 1 reached
Verulam to-day, 1 interviewed Dr. Hill, the District
Surgeon. He also had received the report that an
Indian employed at the Natal Estates mill had suc
cumbed to injuries sustained in Sunday’s affrzy. Within
1o minutes of that collision, Dr. Hill had been on
the scene, and had attended to tha injured Indians—
16 inall. At the time, he did not regard any ot them

-
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as having been dapgerously wounded, though some
injuries were serious. .

However, on receipt of the pews of this Indiao’s
death, he motored, without delay, to Avoca, where,
at the locai hospital, the Indian in question had expired,
1 ‘found,” said Dr. Hill, “that death was due to
. natural causes. He died from poeumonia and chronic
kidoey disease. 'He bad also an enlarged beart, There

was no sign of violence, either internal or external .

_ The lung condition was secondary to the heart trouble.”
We must say that we caooot quite understand Dr,
Hill's report that there was o sign of violence, either
internal or external, in face of his statement that he
attended 16 injured Indiaus, one of whom was the
deceased. This maiter is still uoder investigation,
Alarmist reports {continues the reporter) have been
spread that the situation on the North Coast is so
serious that the womenfolk on the cape fields became
so agitated over the disturbances that they fled to
Darban for protection. In only one instance can I
discover that a female relative of a North Coast planter
took train to Durban whep she saw the smoke from a
neighbour's cane field, ' :

Arrest of Leaders

On Thursday morning warrants were issued for the
prreat of several members of the Natal Indian Associa-
tiop and later in the day Messrs. A, M. Moosa, Abdul
Hack Kajee, I. M. Lazarus, Arjoon Siogh, and S.
Emamally appeared before the Assistant Magistrate
(Mr. Rogen) charged with contravening Sections 1
and 2 of Chapter g of Ordinance II of 1850, which
refer to *any person who shall, by violence to the

- person oOr property, or by threats, or intimidation, or”

by molesting, or in any wayobstructing another, force or
endeavour to force, any servant or apprentice to depart
from his service or work,” etc,, andthe penalty 18 a fine
of ten pounds or three months' imprisonment. The
case was adjourned for a week, bail being granted in
sureties of £ 100 each. '

Indentured Men Go to Gaol

" The same day 264 Indiana ftrom the Harbour were
brought before the Court. In the first batch, z00
Indians were charged with absenting themselves from
roll-call without leave. When the charge was ioter-
preted to them, with one accord they sung out that
they were guilty, This was confirmed by the individual
pleas. - -

The men were vot represented, and had nothing to
say. -

The Magistrate (Mr. B. Hodsoun), addressing the
prisooery, told them that there was no excuse for their
having refused to work. The Chief Magistrate bad
addressed them, and their employers bhad done all
they could to induce the men to retura to work, but
they had refused. He pointed out, too, that, as they were
indentured Indians, they were not affected by the £3

licence. Their relusal to work was an ofience against -

the law, and they would be sentenced to seven days’
impaisonment, with bard labour. T
Some ol the men said something to the effect that
they were willing to go to prison, and that they were
prepared to keep going to prison till the £3 tax was
repealed. . . . :
They filed out into the Court-yard, and their places
were taken by auother smaller batch, who were also
charged with absenting themselves from the roll-call
without leave. The proceedings in this case were very
brief. With one accord they all pleaded guilty, and
#hen they were asked if they had anything to say there
was & confused mumble from three or four of their
number. At length one man stepped forward, and
said in Hindustani that he wanted to speak on behalf
of the others. ’ R .
“The £3 tax presses heavily upon us” he said.
“ We want the Magistrate to endeavour to get the L3

tax removed, and also to get Mr. Gandhi released from

prison.”

« The Magistrate told the prisoners that these matters
had nothing to do with them. The £3 licence was
not pressing on the prisovers, because they were
indendured Indias, and were ot liable to pay it.

The spokesman rejoined that he would be liable to

pay it as soon as his indentures expired. .

“ Thep why don’t you go back to India? " said the-

Magistrate. :

When this was interpreted to the prisoner, he said, -

doggedly : “ If you don’t want us here, send us back
pow.” ; .- .

The Magistrate replied that there was no excuse for
the accused’s refusal to work. They had been given
every opportunity of returning to work, but, as they
did oot do so, they would
days, with bard labour. e Z

* We prefer to go to gaol rather than do any more
work,” added the spokesman as he was passing out

with the rest. . “ &

be, imprisoned for sevea -

Altogether, 264 strikery’ and five Jeaders went to gaol., -

Qut of 1,300 Indian employees at the Durban works

ol the South African .Railways, about 100, .it was .

reported, retumed to work oo Thursday. Some of the
Corporation employees, includiog
also returned to their work. =~ -

"«A Meritorious Piece of Work”

The way io' which the Corporation Barracks were
surrounded by the police in the early hours of Friday .
morning constitutes, says the Mercury, quite a meritori- 3.
ous piece ol work. The description of the manoeuvre
teminds one of a well-planned attack upon an army of
trained soldiers instead of, what it really was, an act
of coercion against a number of defenceless labourers
who simply claimed the right t> refrain from work as & -
protest against the £f3tax. - - -« = . T

Af daybreak there assembled in a lane near Greyville -

-56 mounted police, - 12 European constables,-and

about 170 native police boys, and - their attention was

-fixed upon the Indian quarters at the Magazine Barracks,’

the sanitery men, ‘

Eastern Vlei. .There the Corporation Indians were
accommodated. The huts in Which they live occupy .-

some 14 acres, and the object was to surround the
whole of the space before the Indians were astir, and

then ascertain who were willing to work and who were

not. Filty of the mounted police, under 2 lieutenant,

belonged to the Transvaal ; six were Durban Borough -

Police.
120 Durban - native police boys, and there were 50
more native Transvaal boys, under-a corporal.” The

The 12 European constables had with them~"

whole force was under the command-of Inspector -

Alexaunder, and at a given order from him. the men

chased along the three sides of the triangular piece
-of ground and hemmed in the Indians. - The whole of -

the manoeuvre, from the time the order was given,"

occupied exactly 3o sec.; which was really a fine per- -

formance. The Indians, numbering about 500, came -
out, surprised to fined that they were “surronnded, :

Inspector Alexander, through an interpreter, addressed

the crowd, saying that those who desired to work would
receive a police escort into town, and the others would

. be arrested. . . - .

About 100 of the coolies refused to go to woflé, dnd
were at once taken prisoners. Together the whole of
the 500 were marched to Durban ; the prisoners. were -

lodged in the Gaol, and the others-sent to work,- ‘The -

result of the police action thus was"to compel the -
. majority of the Corporzation Indians to return to- work.
* In fact, about the only ones away are those who are.
_now in prison. The prisoners were tried before Mr.
B. Hodson, in the Court. Eightysix indentured In. -

dians, who pleaded guilty to-refusing to work, were

imprisoned, with hard labour, for seven days; 13 were

discharged upon reasonable excuses,” Eighteen free

Indians, who were similarly charged, were fined £3,: -
or six weeks’ hard labour. ' The men stood in batches -

in the Court, and were not legally represented. Th.
‘had nothing to say. - o p & ey'
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- More Leaders Arrested

Metsrs, Sorabji Rustordjee, A. Christopher and R,
Bhuﬁvﬁn were arrested oB Friday and brought before
the
five leacers arrexted on the previots day. These were
also remanded until the 27th instant 6n bail of Lioo
each. o o

Thues was 2 fight réported at Avoca between the
police and strikers. The press report states that the
Indiany vommenced destroying property in the
neighbouthoot of the basracks, some pigsties being
demolished.” Qur own information is that it was a

. gueston --o) fugl starvation. The men had oo fuel

~and they wete prevented from going away from the

-

g

butratks to search for it. Coosequently they took
what they eould find. Eventually #3 men were arrested.
The whole of Messrs., Reynolds Bros’ Indians,
pumbeting” about 3,066 struck work én Friday morn-
-{ng, and uthers also in the distiict lollowed‘!mt.
 The Chief Magistrate of Durban has been going
about the estated trying to persuade the strikers to

-s2torn to work and on Saturday he visited Reunioh and

ltovs. ~1n all his nddresses he has patticularly empha-
.pized the futility of the strike; and the detetmination of
the Government that there could be no discuwioh on

# the points at issue so long as the Strike &xisted.

1 Batches of from ten to lorty strikers were arrested in

. various plates during the day, and it was teported that

.

thers was a collision with the police near Park Rynie.

. - Strike at Maritzburg

“Tre chief dvent ot the day was the commencement of

‘the strike ih Maritsbutg. A mass meeting was held

#hich wag adaressed by. Medsrs. Thambi Naidoo and.

P, . Naidod, two well.known passive resisters, and a

~ rewolution ‘was adopted declaring 4 geheral sttike as '

- frooy Sutarday aftethoon, but a definite stipulation was

- made that the sanitary, Hospital, elettric light depart-

“inent, and Asylum Indians should temain at their
fjosts, and Cohtinue to earty on the wock, in brder to
gbviate the obviously disastrsus eonsequences which
would be resultant on Ehese then joinlhg the strike,

The mesting which was attended by 4,000 to 5,008
Indians, was at times ¢haracterised by seened of agute
Cexcitemest, - : -

-+ %ir, T\ ‘Naldoo towards the elose of the meeting Was

~ notified ‘ol the attival of & membet of the C.1.D., who

‘held & waskant for his arrest. Mr, Naidoo announced

10 the ctowd thut a watrant had been issued at Durban ,

3 ab- v v'clock that day for his arrest, but he exhorted hig |

agistrate eharged with the same offence as the

tused to return to work, but were quite willing to be
arrested, and also communicated with the manager ol
the estate to which these puople belonged On Monday
men, women and children from different estates kept pour-
ingin until midnight and on Tuesday they were
stil comiog. On Tuesday tnoming, no reply
having been received from the Verulam Magistrate,
Mr. West addressed the following telegram to the
Minister of the Interior, directing a letter in similar
terms to Mr. Binns, the Chief Magistrate of the Durban
Division. i

‘Hundreds starving Indians coming to the settlement
seeking protection and food. We ure allowing them to
remain on understanding that they are liable to arrest,
Most of people belong Natal Estates and they declare
that they are driven away, Sugrest Government allow
people remain guietly here untit disturbanee is over,Go
vernment to supply food and take charge camp.  Anx!
ious assist Government keep order and  avoid injury or
lost of life. We have hundred acres land and water
supply. On Saturday, when ten people arrived, intorm
ed Campbell and Magistrate Verulam stating people
willing to be arrested but afraid ill-treatment.  Assist-
ant Managers came and asked people return, but they
relused- Magistrate haw not replied Saturday's tele-
gram. :

A reply was received to this telegram to ihe effect
that there was no foundation for the fear of illtreat-

_ment.

Mr, Thambi Natdoo wasatrested at Marltzburg on Sa-
turday on a warrant Irom Durban, where he is presently
bail huviog been refused ag he declined to glve an un-
dertaking that he would refrain lrom taking part in the
passive resistance movement while out. His case wlll
be heard with the others to-morrow,

Mr. Gandhi is stlll at volksrust, _ '

A most brutal assault was perpetrated oo Saturday tast
by & plamet upon two Mohammetian gentlemen at Ve.
rulam who were out for ar. alternoon stroll and one of
whom was a Moulvi and had but just arrived from Ma.
ritzburg to officiate at a marriage,

 The Marriage Question

Reuter cables from London that Mr. Lewis Harcourt,
the Colonial Secretaty, replying to representations
made to him by the London branch of the Moslem
League regarding the effect of the recent judgment of

the Natal ‘Division of the Supreme .Court of South
Africa on Indian marringes, points out that the judg-
ment is concerned with the interpretation ol one

" hearery to have no feaf, us he wis not afraid to go tu
* gaol for the bavse, A vensatibn was created by the
.anndutcement, snd Mr. Naidoo proceeded to warn the it C t
* crowd bt o foitiate any acts of violente, but to remain | section of the Immigrants Regulation Act. This pro-
- putttive Yesistets and obecy the commands of law and | vides that certain persons are not deemed to be pro-
_ order. | Let them, he $1id, sufter for the tause, but on | hibited immigrants, and does not appenr to restrict

. ne atcount resort to acts of aggression or violation of
the Jawm. & - o o

. -Can the Govetnment Deport?

_ with desertion,

A new phase of the position as affecting the Indian
(éuesti_on came. to light in the First Criminal Court on

alurday (saﬂs the Nalal Mercury), when Canni and
‘Kaoniappa Reddy, two of the strikers, were charged
,Io withdrawing the charge, Sergt.
Mallibson said b
refused to work, aud the Protector of Indian Immigrants
had power in these circumstances to cancel their con-
tract, This the Protecter had done, and the Govern-
‘ment was to send the two accused back to India. The
Protector has since. contradicted the above statement
regarding deportation and points out that ha is not an
immigration efficer. : - -

People have been coming into the Pheenix setile-
ment since Saturday last,-asking for protection and
stating that they were afraid of. being thrashed. Mr.
West immediately after the arrival of the first batch
telegraphed to the Magistrate of the Division, inform-
ing bim of the arrival of the men, and that they re-

e wished to make @ statemeot. They -

the power of the Executive of the South Alrican
Governnient to admit Indian women,

Mr. Harcourt explained that he understands that

‘the South Aftican law oever recognised polygamous

mrriages, being identical in this tespect with the law
in Great Britain, and recent decisions in the Courts

- have not altered the law in any way.

Mr. Fischer Interviewed

On arrival at Capetown oo the 4th ipstant the Right
Hon. Abraham Fischer, Minister of the Interior, was
interviewed by a representative of Keuter's Agency.
Refetring to the Indian question, the Minister, on
being informed of the present position, expressed the
opinion that the Indians were adopting a very foolish
attitude in fighting for theoretic rights. e had dis-
cussed the Indiap question with responsible officinls
in England, and he had no reason to believe that the
latter would not do what was fair to South Africa under
the circumstances, In regard to the Indian marriage
question, Mr, Fischer emphasised that it was impossible
in the Immigration Law to alter the Marringe Law.
I{ a European came along and demanded recognition



-
-

Noveuser 26TH, 1913

INDIAN OPINION . . .

-~

) 2-97

-

for bis wile, he (the Mipister) would demand to see

his marriage lines,

Questioned in connection with & recent judgment
in the Supreme Court at Maritzburg on monogamous
marriages Mr. Fischer pointed out that it was simply
the Roman-Dutch law, and it had becn decided by the
Courts. The Indians were simply creating new
gricvances, and il they took up s fighting attitude they
could hardly expect the Government to give in.

How the £3 Tax Works

A Goverpnient official in Dutban gave to a prcmmﬁ

some details regarding the reasons that led up to the {

A3 tax being imposed, and the effect it has had upon
the question of Indian labour. In 1894, when Natal
was given responsible Government it was noticed
during the elections that several speakers made the
point that the Indians must not be allowed to maintain
themselves io the Colony, and run the risk of Natal
becoming an Indian country. It was the desire of the
Indiaas to be allowed to indenture for five years, and
then to be allowed to remain in the country without
aoy resirictions whatever. The Natal Government
agreed to send a Commission, consisting of Sir Henry
Binns and Mr, L. If. Mawon, to India, to consider with
the Indian Government as to whbat restriction should
be pleced upon the lodians remaining in Natal. The
tesult of the Commission was the passing of Act 17
of 1895, which laid down the condition permitting the

* Indians to remain in Natal, which was that Indians,

upon completing their indentures, shall either re-_
fndenture, return to Indir, or pay a .£3 tax for remain-
ing in Natal ns free Indians, and those conditions
were approved of by the then Indian Government.
Before au immigrant left India tor service in Natal, he

“or she were given a form, provided by the Indian

Government, written in three pative languages as well
as English, giving full details of the conditions ol
service, and the form clearly states that ** after the |

" expiration of this contract of five years, every emigrant

who shait {ail, neglect, or tefuse to return to India, or.
to become re-indentured in Natal, shall take out year
by yenr a licence to remain in the Colony, to be issued
by the Magistrate of his district on payment of £3
annually., Such immigmnts as have taken out licences
to remain in the Coloay shall bear their own expense
to retura to India,” It was poioted out that by signing
this agreement belore leaving India, the immigrants
knew perlecily well the cobnditions relative to their
being allowed to remain here, and they came here quite
prepared to pay the £ 3 tax if they so desired to remain,
Had Act 17 ot” 1895 not been passed, Natal would

bosses,” and this, of course, is exactly what the“tax
was imposed to defeat, and is defeating. _

“Mr. Merriman on thé.- Indian
Question =

Merriman, speaking to-night at the Colston banquet,’
beld under the suspices of the Society of Old Bristolians,

Capetown, November 13jth (Reuter). Mr.—-"J. X

in Capetown, reterred to the Indiao question. He -

said we ought to take ioto most serious cgnsidg.mio_n
the question of our relations to British Indians in this

country.  (Hear, hear.) He viewed with horror-the fact .
that he saw the storthy petrel that took such a darge
part in the disturbaoces of last July in Johannesburg
coming forward as the patroo of British Indians. (Hear, -
hear.) These unfortunate people were being misled.

It was pitiful to see the things that were going on, aud
to read of the miserable attempts at processions and

strikes, because they could lead to nothing but evil for .

those concerned and to us iv our position as the

dominant race. It was. very pititul that we could not*

settle a question that was not only an unfortunate thing
for South Africa and & stumbling block in the way of.
the Union, but it was far more than that. - What we

did to the Indiaos in-this country had an ‘echo else- -

where. It would be used in India by agitators there
who w

and weapon sgainst the Empire, - No greater blow

hostile to the British.rule as an argument _

could be inflicted on the Empire than the- encourage-: -

ment of anything of that sort, . We were very fond

of 1alking about loyalty, but loyalty was not one-sided, - -
and if we were really loyal we must be.prepared to -

make some sacrifices for our loyalty. - The Ki

hostile to British rule, one of the deadliest weapons
they could have. We were all anxious to support the

had -
| given certain solemu assurances to the people of India, .
and it we were by-‘our actions to lend. colour to the. -
- idea that these promises were of no avail, we should
place in the hands of the agitators in India, who.were--

Navy, and therd was a strong sectio in favour of -

giviog a larger contribution. - But there was no -con-:
tribution to the Navy which could possibly wipe out.

the evil that could be doue by placing in the hands of -
sort he had -men-: -

el

ngitators in India a weapon of the
tioned. © e :

A Member of Parliament Speaks -

"In the course of & speech to his “constituents at -

Mauritzburg, on the r3th uito, Mr. T..Orr, M.LA,, is

reported by the Valal! Wiiness to have said .=~

* Another important matter, which- had been causing >
~ considerable anxiety, was the Immipration Restriction
~ Act. Speaking for himself, he did not think & _
case had been made out for the whole of that Act - .
Had the session lasted a little longer, Parliament would : :
have probably given effect to some modification. It
was time that the £3. Indian licence disappeared; if
only for the reason that special differentiation in tax-

have been flooded with Indians, and special stress is
laid upon the poiot that that Act was approved of by
the Indian Government, acling in the interests of their
people. As far as the Indians are ¢oncernrd, it is~
claimed there is no injustice to them whatever, for they
have two altematives, re-indenture, or a free passage
back to India. : o '

It is also claimed that the tax is merely a question .

of policy, and is serving its purpose well. Last Thurs-
day 700 lndians were takes back to India, and alto-

. gether this year about 1,500 have returned rather than

remain here. ‘This year hay thown an increase in the
numbers returniog, and this year'the percentage of
re-indentured Indians is 9o per cent., against g6 per
ceut. lust year, which shows that last y=ar employers
of Indian labour lost 4 per cent. of their employees,
and this year 10 per cent., pointing conclusively to the

fact that the Indians are going back to lodia. As |

showing the miud_ ol the ladian, our informant stated
~ that whilst some immigrants were waiting at the depit

- for a boat to take them to Indis, they told him that

il the Government took the £3 tax oft they would not
g0 back. They were asked what they would then do,
and replied: “We will stop here and be our own

DR W

| ation between coloured and white British subjects -
-would always be a booe of contention ; between the .

Union and the Indian Government, which would always

create the maximum of friction.” They knew that the - -

licence had not been regularly collected for 2 number:

-of years. Spurts were made in the collection, and
these died away, and .he believed that the time had " -

come when the Indian licence should disappear, and -

with it a {ruitful source of friction, - Another -point on

which the Indians felt sorely was that they had mo
- votes and no direct represeatation, and for that reason -

they, the white people, must be scrupulously fair and .
just in all their dealings with the Indians. (Hear, hiear.)

It was unfortunately true that & recent decision of a -

when they were the li‘ngl'e wives of an Indian by dubbing

~Natal Court had cast a slur on Indian women even .
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thew polygamous because they came irom & polygamous
country: He was quite sure that that was not the
jutertion of Parliament when the Act was framed, and
he hoped that in the course of the next session the
Government would find an opportupity to ‘make the
position clear. They must give justice to these people.
They were in the country, and they formed a difficult
prublem because they were multiplying faster and faster,
and exceeding the pumbers of the white people. They
must never have such direct re resentation as would
giv them a power over the whifes, but the whites must
giv. every fairness and justice that the case demanded.

_ - News in Brief

. The Chairman of the British Indian Assoéiation, in
» b-tter dated the 18th October, draws the attention of

-~
R

. the Resident Magistrate, Volksrust,. to the following

C. |

roust grave matter :— . 4
_ % Mr, Badat, the well-known merchant of your town,

“informs my Association that, on Monday last, he was

suumoned to the local Charge Office to take charge of
the young son ot Mrs_Sheik Mehtab, who was about

_ to be sentenced under . the Immigration Act. While

‘Mr Badat was there, the Sergeant—an officer newly

- appointed I understand—desired the lady to give her

* finger-impressions.

This she declined to do, where-
Gpob the officer roughly addressed her, seized her by

:thearm aod pushed her forward so that she almost

el

*Lim."”

Mr. Badat remonstrated, saying that that was not
the way to treat a prisoner. Upon this the officer
otdertd Mr. Badat out and closed the door behind

-

- . The Association requests tbat the fullest investi-
* gatiuns should be made into the malter. .

" 'I'he Magistrate passed the matter on to the District

-~ Commandant of Police at Wakkerstroom who made ao

" iequiry.

- 'that the Sergeant asked Mrs. Mehtab to give her

' th-mb-impression, but she did not appear to under-

_stand what was wanted. The Sergeant took hold of her

wrist to take her thumb-impression,  but when she

In = letter, dated the z7th ultimo, be states

~undegstood what was required, she pulled her hand’

- "'The Sfar's report of Geaersf Smuts’. speech
" Prétoria contains the following :— -

uw 1y, and was not pushed as stated. 4

! .
at

" I'here was not one Indian in Natal wha on entering

th i country had pot agreed to pay the £3 poll tax on.
- ""the cnnclusion of his contract s an indentured labourer.
. H~ wished to wam the Indian population of Natal

" that their position was not so secure that they could

play with the laws of the country. If they were not

.+ careful they would find themselves in the wrong box.

- The Pretoria Socialist Society has sent the [ollowing
_telegram to Mr. Gandhi :—¢ Pretoria Socialist Society

sends sympathetic greetings to Indian strikers, wishing
them success.” . _

" At Dapnhauser Branch Court on Friday last, the
Mngistrate sentenced two Indian boys of eleven and
thirteen to receive seven lashes each because they re-

. refused to go back to their work. - The Newcastle Com-

mittee lodged notice of appeal. .

Mr Ephraim writes that, whilst the town of Newcastle
was crowded with strikers, ¢ We had to house them bere
there and everywhere. We lodged them in private
houses, sheds, stables, sample-rooms and certain houses
that were placed at our disposal out of kindness and
pity. Mrs. Smith, proprietress of the Bridge Hotel,
gave us a nice large hail free of charge. We haven't
been on any occasion but one refused any house that
was empty either by Europeans or Indians.”

The Newcastle Committes engaged Dr. Cooper to
attend some patients among the strikers. .
. At the Newcastle Court on the 4th inst., Mr. Liggett,
compound manager of the Durban Navigation Collier-

LY

_tinues one day after it comes to the votice of

jes, was finedl ten shillings for assauiting an Indian
woman pamed Kathija. .

A #afl writer in the Advertiser says: Our alleged
South African statesmen are so painfully pusilanimous
that, baving once assumed an attitude, they dare pot
retreat from it, not because they are in the right, but
becausc they fear—actually fear—the ridicale ol the
people, if they stepped down and made any concessions.
What says the gallaot Smuts? * The Government leel
that a promise of repeal under the present state of
affairs would be a * public disaster, the consequences
of which nobe can foresee, and are not disposed to
consider it.” la other words: *We don't care x mp
about the tax, and would have repealed it leng ago, but
we messed the thing up as usual, and now we are afraid
to give in to a handful of Indians, because of what the
public would say.”

The Bombay Chronscle, says Reuter, comments upon
the action of the Union Government in forcing passive
resisters to work in the mines, and says that, it this con- -
¢ the Im-
perial Government, every self-respecting Indian, instead
of desiring to assert British citizenship, will cease to
regard it as an honourable thing. The paper has started
a fund in aid of the Indian movement in South Africa,

The Hon. Dadabhai Naoroji, in his letter ot thanks °
for birthday greetings, writes on the aand September

« Once again, the situation of our countrjtien 10 the
Colonies, and particularly in South Alfrica, stirs us with
deep emotion. They have suffered loog and suffered
much, and have 3o borne their misfortune as to entitla

- them to the better regard and protection of His Majes-

ty’s Governmeat. 1 have viewed with deep concern the
indifference of the Imperial Government in regard to
the recent Act in South Africa. But I still hope for
justice and action.”

Reuter's correspoodent in Victoris, l}rilish Columbia,
telegraphs to London that 15 more Hindus have been
ordered to be deported, and 39 are now awaiting de-
portation. The Hindu population in British Columbia
is arranging mass meetings to protest against the treat-
ment of their compatriots, Urkler the law in British
Columbia, no Hindu is allowed to land unless he
arrives on a steamer direct from India. As there i3
no service of steamers rupning between the two coun-

. tries, it forms an effective bar in many cases to their
claim to be allowed to land. ‘

A school history reader contains this thought.
inducing sentence :— It has been wisely aaid that
when an Englishman and & Chinaman meet for the
first time, he who smiles first at the appearance ol the
other is the barbarian.” You can &pply that maxim to

_more things than dress, and to people who are not

Celestials.—Star,

Mr. M. R. Greenlees has resigned from the Immi-
gration Board at Pretoria and Mr. J. N. van Alpheo

_ has been appointed for & period of four months,

The New South Wales Assembly by 28 votes to 23
‘has (says Reuter) rejected a Bill providing for the com-
pulsory vaccination ol intants, The voting was on &

nop-party basis.
—_——

*
= . Latest Information

20 yesterday afternoon on the eve ol going to
3::;:5,3 m?r Aclingy Editor, Mr. Wost, was arr'ested at his
home at the Phoenix Settlement, charged w1t_h sharbour
ing ndentured people’. He was taken away o 2 motor
and was unable to inform his co-workers of his arrest. -

We have received a telegram from Maritzburg that
= aoo strikers are out there, that the enthus:apm of
:l;e people is wonderful, and that General Lukig was
expected there with 3oo men. o

‘The people at Phoenix were removed by the police

late yesterday alterooon.



